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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 To the Shareholders of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc.  

 

Opinion  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. and its 

subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at 

December 31, 2022 and 2021, the  consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in 

shareholders’ (deficiency) equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the 

“consolidated financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 

the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated 

financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the consolidated financial 

statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matter - Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Company 

incurred a net loss during the year ended December 31, 2022 and had a working capital deficit and an 

accumulated deficit at December 31, 2022. As stated in Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other 

matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that material uncertainties exist that cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described 

in the Emphasis of Matter - Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section of our report, we have 

determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 
 

(Continues)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. (continued) 

 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Assessment of held for sale and 

discontinued operations  

We identified the determination of held for 

sale and discontinued operations, related 

impairment loss, and overall presentation 

and disclosure in the consolidated financial 

statements as a key audit matter. 

We determined this as a key audit matter as it represented 
an area of significant risk of material misstatement given 
the magnitude of the held for sale and discontinued 
operations and the high degree of estimation uncertainty 
in the related assessments. In addition, significant auditor 
judgement and knowledge were required in evaluating the 
results of our audit procedures due to the sensitivity of the 
Company’s assessments.  
 
We performed the following procedures: 
 Evaluated management’s process and methodology for 

determination of held for sale and discontinued 
operations; 

 Tested the completeness and accuracy of data and, 
reasonableness of assumptions used in the Company’s 
impairment assessment; 

 Analyzed the terms of the disposal agreement and the 
resulting calculations;  

 Evaluated the reasonableness of the Company’s 
segregation of assets and liabilities that are classified 
as held for sale, including retrospective 
reclassifications made to the comparative financial 
information; and 

 Assessed the overall presentation and disclosure in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated.  

 

We obtained Management’s Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report.  If, based on 

the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

(Continues) 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. (continued) 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 

in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 

(Continues) 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. (continued) 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 

to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 

of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sameer Parekh. 
 
 

 

 

Richmond Hill, Canada  
May 1, 2023 

SRCO Professional Corporation

        CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Authorized to practice public accounting by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario
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GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 
Nature of operations and going concern (Note 1) 
Contingencies (Note 11) 
Subsequent events (Note 21) 

 

Note December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ $

Assets

Current assets

Cash 333,567            5,184,166                  

Trade receivables 5 84,433              720,569                     

Prepayments and deposits 32,524              105,753                     

Other receivables -                    264,725                     

Assets held for sale 20 2,954,950         -                             

Inventories 376,580            1,003,902                  

Total current assets 3,782,054         7,279,115                  

Non-current assets

Prepayment and deposits 5,574                74,151                       

Property and equipment 6 -                    3,957,758                  

Intangible assets 8 61,778              5,245                         

Right-of-use assets 7 1,950,943         6,106,934                  

Total assets 5,800,349         17,423,203                

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other payables 9 1,150,226         1,973,231                  

Customer deposits 185,620            102,859                     

Liabilities directly associated w ith the assets held for sale 20 2,580,489         -                             

Current portion of lease liabilities 7 382,692            949,721                     

Total current liabilities 4,299,027         3,025,811                  

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 9 -                    66,514                       

Lease liabilities 7 1,752,978         5,032,738                  

Total liabilities 6,052,005         8,125,063                  

Shareholders' (deficiency) equity 

Share capital 10 16,522,789       16,522,789                

Contributed surplus 10 752,466            465,532                     

Warrant reserve 10 1,872,467         1,872,467                  

Accumulated deficit (19,398,663)      (9,562,409)                 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (715)                  (239)                           

Total shareholders' (deficiency) equity (251,656)           9,298,140                  

Total liabilities and shareholders' (deficiency) equity 5,800,349         17,423,203                
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GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Note $ $

Revenue               2,471,513                    7,591,326 

Operating expenses: 

Materials and consumables used             (1,090,645)                  (2,087,126)

Employee wages and benefits             (3,245,501)                  (5,232,578)

Consulting and professional fees                (335,929)                     (415,586)

Depreciation and amortization 6,7,8             (1,086,279)                     (948,970)

Supplies and small equipment                (151,758)                     (197,035)

Rent and occupancy cost                (204,778)                     (191,456)

Travel and entertainment                  (95,680)                     (156,139)

Advertising and promotion                (133,211)                       (62,280)

General and administration                (760,393)                     (326,718)

Share-based compensation 10                (286,934)                     (613,600)

Loss from operations             (4,919,595)                  (2,640,162)

Other operating expenses:

Finance cost                (352,352)                     (422,441)

RTO transaction 15                  (10,849)                  (4,144,838)

Transaction cost                           -                         (27,425)

Gain on change in fair value of derivative liabilities 14                           -                           33,312 

Gain on lease modification                    70,708                                -   

Gain on disposal of property and equipment                      8,592                                -   

Loss on sale of assets 4                (298,441)                                -   

Impairment loss 6,7             (1,398,436)                                -   

Loss on conversion of convertible debentures 14                           -                       (197,440)

Write-off of trade receivables                  (16,634)                                -   

Reversal of (provision for) expected credit losses 5                    31,403                       (13,091)

Gain on loan forgiveness                           -                         189,639 

            (1,966,009)                  (4,582,284)

Loss from operations before income taxes             (6,885,604)                  (7,222,446)

Income tax expense - current 17                           -                                  -   

Income tax expense - deferred 17                           -                                  -   
Loss from continuing operations (6,885,604)            (7,222,446)                 

Loss after tax from discontinued operations             (2,950,650) (1,301,596)                 

Net loss (9,836,254)            (8,524,042)                 

Other comprehensive loss

Foreign exchange translation adjustment                       (476)                            (239)
(9,836,730)            (8,524,281)                 

Net loss per share: 

Net loss attributable to common shares ($) - continuing operations (6,885,604)            (7,222,446)                 

Basic loss per share - continuing operations 16 (0.46)                     (0.63)                          

Diluted loss per share - continuing operations 16 (0.46)                     (0.63)                          

Net loss attributable to common shares ($) - discontinued operations (2,950,650)            (1,301,596)                 

Basic loss per share - discontinued operations 16 (0.20)                     (0.11)                          

Diluted loss per share - discontinued operations 16 (0.20)                     (0.11)                          

Basic loss per share 16 (0.66)                     (0.75)                          

Diluted loss per share 16 (0.66)                     (0.75)                          

Comprehensive loss
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GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ (DEFICIENCY) EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  

 

 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

Subordinate Multiple Share Contributed Warrant Accumulated Accumulated other

Note Units voting shares voting shares capital surplus reserve deficit comprehensive loss Total

# # # $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, January 1, 2021 10,000,000       -                       -                  1,264,298       262,493         -                 (1,038,367)        -                               488,424         
Loss from continuing operations -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 (7,222,446)        -                               (7,222,446)     

Loss after tax from discontinued operations -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 (1,301,596)        -                               (1,301,596)     

Other comprehensive loss for the year -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 -                    (239)                             (239)               

Partial repayment of convertible debentures 14 -                    -                       -                  -                  101,720         -                 -                    -                               101,720         

Conversion of convertible debentures 10 500,000            -                       -                  714,712          -                 -                 -                    -                               714,712         

Issuance of units, net 10 8,956,699         -                       -                  10,455,409     -                 1,872,467      -                    -                               12,327,876    

Issuance of units for services 10 1,233,072         -                       -                  2,910,050       -                 -                 -                    -                               2,910,050      

Issuance of units for RTO 15 512,000            -                       -                  1,208,320       101,319         -                 -                    -                               1,309,639      

Shares exchange under dual share class structure 10 (21,201,771)      14,701,745          64,972            -                  -                 -                 -                    -                               -                 

Distributions 10 -                    -                       -                  (30,000)           -                 -                 -                    -                               (30,000)          

Balance, December 31, 2021 -                    14,701,745          64,972            16,522,789     465,532         1,872,467      (9,562,409)        (239)                             9,298,140      

Loss from continuing operations -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 (6,885,604)        -                               (6,885,604)     

Loss after tax from discontinued operations 20 -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 (2,950,650)        -                               (2,950,650)     

Other comprehensive loss for the year -                    -                       -                  -                  -                 -                 -                    (476)                             (476)               

Share-based compensation 10 -                    -                       -                  -                  286,934         -                 -                    -                               286,934         

Shares exchange under dual share class structure 10 -                    669,500               (6,695)             -                  -                 -                 -                    -                               -                 

Balance, December 31, 2022 -                    15,371,245          58,277            16,522,789     752,466         1,872,467      (19,398,663)      (715)                             (251,656)        

Share Capital 
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GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  

 

   The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Note  $  $ 

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss (9,836,254)               (8,524,042)                    

Loss from discontinued operations (2,950,650)               (1,301,596)                    

Loss from continuing operations (6,885,604)               (7,222,446)                    

Items not affecting cash:

Depreciation and amortization 6,7,8 1,086,279                948,970                        

Accretion on lease liabilities 7 224,407                   293,761                        

Accretion on convertible debentures 13 -                           93,713                          

Change in fair value of derivative liabilities 14 -                           (33,312)                         

Loss on conversion of convertible debentures 13 -                           197,440                        

Write-off of trade receivables 16,634                     -                                

(Reversal) provision for expected credit losses 5 (31,403)                    13,091                          

Free rent received 7 (78,263)                    -                                

Share-based compensation 10 286,934                   613,600                        

RTO transaction -                           3,587,322                     

Gain on lease modification (70,708)                    -                                

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (8,592)                      -                                

Loss on sale of assets 298,441                   -                                

Impairment loss 1,398,436                -                                

Gain on loan forgiveness -                           (189,639)                       

Changes in non-cash working capital items:

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables 502,146                   (250,090)                       

Decrease (increase) in prepayments and deposits 11,336                     (159,388)                       

Decrease (increase) in other receivables 14,110                     (252,895)                       

Decrease (increase) in inventories 262,580                   (751,408)                       

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and other payables (158,008)                  131,930                        

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 82,761                     (78,548)                         

Cash flow used in operating activities from continuing operations (3,048,514)               (3,057,899)                    

Cash flow (used in) from operating activities from discontinued operations (50,700)                    225,821                        

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment 6 (874,275)                  (3,085,142)                    

Purchase of intangible assets 8 (78,035)                    -                                

Sale of subsidiary, net of cash divested 4 462,663                   -                                

Acquisition of Prominex, net of cash acquired 15 -                           214,761                        

Cash flow used in investing activities from continuing operations (489,647)                  (2,870,381)                    

Cash flow used in investing activities from discontinued operations (13,183)                    -                                

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of units, net 10 -                           12,327,876                   

Issuance of convertible debentures, net 13 -                           100,556                        

Repayment of convertible debentures 13 -                           (369,427)                       

Distributions paid to members 10 -                           (30,000)                         

Payment of lease liabilities 7 (1,086,141)               (1,296,217)                    

Cash flow (used in) from financing activities from continuing operations (1,086,141)               10,732,788                   

Cash flow (used in) from financing activities from discontinued operations -                           -                                

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (476)                         (239)                              

(Decrease) increase in cash (4,688,185)               5,030,329                     

Cash, beginning of year 5,184,166                154,076                        

Cash, end of year before reclassification as held for sale 495,505                   5,184,166                     

Reclassification of cash as held for sale (161,938)                  -                                

Cash, end of year 333,567                   5,184,166                     

Supplementary information

Interest paid, net 242,450                   17,127
Taxes paid  -                           -

Conversion of convertible debt and derivative liabilities -                           714,712



GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021  
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
 

 

Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. (formerly Prominex Resource Corp.) (“GSL” or the “Company”) was 
incorporated under the Companies Act (British Columbia) on April 29, 1980. The common shares of the 
Company, which have been redesignated as Class A subordinate voting shares (“Subordinate Voting 
Shares”) are traded on the Canadian Securities Exchange (“CSE”) under the stock symbol “GSL”. The head 
office of the Company is located at 4001 SW 47th Avenue, Suite 208 Davie, Florida 33314 and provides hemp 
and marijuana testing services in Florida, the United States.  
 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that 
the Company will, in the foreseeable future realize on its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal 
course of business as they come due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements do not give effect 
to adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern and, 
therefore be required to realize its assets and liquidate its liabilities and commitments in other than the normal 
course of business and at amounts different from those in these consolidated financial statements. Such 
adjustments could be material. As at December 31, 2022, the Company had working capital shortfall of 
$516,973 compared to a surplus of $4,253,304 at December 31, 2021. Net loss for the year ended December 
31, 2022, was $9,836,254 (2021 – $8,524,042). The accumulated deficit as at December 31, 2022 was 
$19,398,663 (2021 – $9,562,409). These circumstances create material uncertainties that cast significant 
doubt as to the Company to continue as a going concern and, hence, as to the appropriateness of the use 
of accounting principles applicable to a going concern. Management has been focused on reducing costs, 
headcount and streamlining operations. On January 30, 2023, the Company entered into a non-binding letter 
of intent to sell all of the outstanding equity interests of Green Scientific Labs AZ, LLC to a third party to 
further reduce ongoing costs (note 21). As a result, a material uncertainty over the Company’s ability to 
operate as a going concern exists. 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MEASUREMENT 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and Interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations 
Committee (“IFRIC”). These consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 
2021 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on April 30, 2023. 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical 
cost convention, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value as described herein.  
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
These statements consolidate the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Control is 
achieved when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as 
to obtain benefits from its activities, are exposed to, or have rights to, variable returns from the Company’s 
involvement with the entity and have the ability to affect those returns through the power over the entity.  
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company until the date 
on which control ceases. Profit and loss or other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries acquired during 
the period are recognized from the date of acquisition or effective date of disposal as applicable. Significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. 

 
The Company has the following subsidiaries:  
 
Name of Entity    % Ownership* Country of incorporation 
Green Scientific Labs Management (Michigan) LLC 100 United States 
Green Scientific Labs AZ LLC 100 United States 
Green Scientific Labs IL, LLC 100 United States 
Green Scientific Labs CT, LLC 100 United States 



GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021  
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MEASUREMENT (continued) 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company divested Green Scientific Labs NJ, LLC. See note 4.  

 
When the proportion of the equity (deficiency) held by non-controlling interest changes, the Company adjusts 
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative 
interest in the subsidiary. The Company recognizes directly in equity (deficiency) any difference between the 
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or 
received and attribute it to the shareholders of the Company. 
 
Functional and Presentation Currency 

 
GSL’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar and those of its wholly owned subsidiaries, as determined 
by management, is the United States (“U.S.”) dollar. For financial reporting purposes, the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company have been presented in the U.S. dollars, the presentation currency.  

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Cash  

 
Cash includes cash deposits with original maturities of 90 days or less in financial institutions.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Trade and other receivables are measured at amortized cost, net of expected credit losses (“ECLs”). The 
Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs which is determined based on historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 
Trade and other receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the asset 
or a portion thereof. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Expenditures that materially increase the life of the assets are capitalized. Ordinary repairs and maintenance 
are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 
the depreciable asset using the following terms and methods: 

 
Leasehold improvements lesser of lease term or 5 years 
Furniture and equipment   5 Years 
Computer software   5 Years 
Vehicles   5 Years 

 
Depreciation begins from the date when the asset is put to use. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
An item of equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset) is included in operations in the year the asset is 
derecognized. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GREEN SCIENTIFIC LABS HOLDINGS INC.  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021  
(Expressed in United States dollars, except indicated otherwise)  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Inventories 
 
Inventories, which consist principally of finished goods testing supplies and reagents, are valued at lower of 
cost and net realizable value. The cost includes material costs and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition, and is accounted for on a first-in/first-out basis. Net 
realizable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the costs necessary 
to make the sale.  

 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized by the Company in accordance with IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. Through application of the standard, the Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
 
In order to recognize revenue under IFRS 15, the Company applies the following five (5) steps: 
• Identify a customer along with a corresponding contract; 

• Identify the performance obligation(s) in the contract to transfer goods or provide distinct services to a 
customer; 

• Determine the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring 
promised goods or services to a customer; 

• Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation(s) in the contract; and 

• Recognize revenue when or as the Company satisfies the performance obligation(s). 
 
Under IFRS 15, revenues from the provision of hemp and marijuana testing services are generally recognized at 
a point in time when control over the goods have been transferred to the customer. Payments are due upon 
transferring the services to the customer.  Revenue is recognized upon the satisfaction of the performance 
obligation. The Company satisfies its performance obligation and transfers control upon delivery and 
acceptance by the customer. 

 
Convertible debentures  
 
The component of convertible debentures that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognized as a liability 
in the consolidated statements of financial position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible 
debentures, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible debenture and carried at amortized cost until extinguished. The remainder of the proceeds are 
allocated to the conversion option that is recognized and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction 
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years. On initial 
recognition, transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible 
debentures based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components. 
 
If the conversion option of convertible debentures exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative, on 
initial recognition, the derivative component of the convertible debentures is measured at fair value and 
presented as part of derivative liabilities which are carried at fair value with fair value changes being 
recognized in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Any excess of proceeds over the 
amount initially recognized as the derivative component is recognized as the liability component. On initial 
recognition, transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative components of the 
convertible debentures based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative. The portion of the 
transaction costs relating to the liability component is recognized initially as part of the liability. The portion 
of the transaction costs relating to the derivative component is recognized immediately in the consolidated 
statements of loss and comprehensive loss.  An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid contract  
that also includes a non-derivative host, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. A derivative that is attached to a financial 
instrument but is contractually transferable independently of that instrument, or has a different counterparty, 
is not an embedded derivative, but a separate financial instrument. 

 
Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Assets 

 
Recognition and Initial Measurement 
 

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial assets are measured initially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
their acquisition. Transaction costs attributable to the acquisition of financial assets subsequently measured 
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss when incurred. 

 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement 
 
On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The Company 
determines the classification of its financial assets, together with any embedded derivatives, based on the 
business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. 

 

Financial assets are classified as follows: 
 
• Amortized cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows are 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest revenue is calculated using 
the effective interest method and gains or losses arising from impairment, foreign exchange and 
derecognition are recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets measured at amortized cost would comprise 
of cash, trade receivables and other receivables.  
 

• FVTOCI - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, 
and for which the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at 
FVTOCI. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method and gains or losses arising from 
impairment and foreign exchange are recognized in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount 
of the financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income. The Company does not hold any 
financial assets measured at FVTOCI. 
 

• FVTPL - Assets that do not meet the criteria to be measured at amortized cost, or FVTOCI, are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. All interest income and changes in the financial assets’ carrying amount 
are recognized in profit or loss. The Company does not hold any financial assets measured at FVTPL. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Impairment 
 
An expected credit loss (“ECL”) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost. The 
Company’s financial assets measured at amortized cost and subject to the ECL model consist primarily of 
trade receivables. In determining the ECLs management makes estimates related to the probability‐weighted 
amount of ECLs based on a ranger of outcomes, the discount rate that reflects the effective interest rate of 
the asset and other information available as of the reporting date relating to past events, current conditions 
and forecasts regarding future economic conditions.  
 
The Company applies simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Company 
does not track credit risk, but instead recognize a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.   
 
Derecognition of Financial Assets 
 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when its contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire. 

 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Recognition and Initial Measurement 
 

The Company recognizes a financial liability when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. At initial recognition, the Company measures financial liabilities at their fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to their issuance, with the exception of financial liabilities subsequently 
measured at FVTPL for which transaction costs are immediately recorded in the consolidated statement of 
loss and comprehensive loss. Where an instrument contains both a liability and equity component, these 
components are recognized separately based on the substance of the instrument, with the liability component 
measured initially at fair value and the equity component assigned the residual amount. 

 

 
Classification and subsequent measurement 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Interest, gains and losses relating to a financial liability are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. 
 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability only when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expire.  
 
The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:  
Cash      Amortized costs  
Trade receivables    Amortized costs 
Other receivables     Amortized costs 
Accounts payable and other payables   Amortized costs 
Lease liabilities     Amortized costs 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Provisions  

 
Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. The amount recognized as a provision is management’s best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the dates of the consolidated statements of 
financial position, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 
provision is measured using an estimate of the cash flows required to settle the present obligation and the 
effect is material, its carrying amount is calculated from the present value of those cash flows. 
 
Foreign Currency 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than functional currencies are translated into 
functional currencies at the rate of exchange in effect at the consolidated statements of financial position 
date. Non- monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the historical rates. Revenues and expenses are 
translated at the transaction date exchange rate. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from translation 
are reflected in net loss and comprehensive loss for the period. On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of 
foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and 
their statements of profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates during the period. The exchange 
differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss.   

 
Intangible Assets 

 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Amortization of definite life intangibles is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives, which do not exceed the contractual period, if any, over the following terms:  
 

Licenses   2 years 
 
The Company evaluates the reasonableness of the estimated useful lives of these intangible assets on an 
annual basis. Intangible assets with definite lives are assessed for impairment when some or all of the internal 
or external indicators of impairment are met. 
 
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
 
Non-financial assets including intangible assets with a finite useful life are tested for impairment when events 
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Events relating to 
recoverability may include significant unfavorable changes in business conditions, recurring losses, or a 
forecasted inability to achieve break-even operating results over an extended period. An impairment loss is 
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
Company evaluates impairment losses for potential reversals when events or circumstances warrant such 
consideration. 
 
For the purpose of testing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unit, or “CGU”). An impairment loss is recognized for the amount, if 
any, by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and the value in use (being the present value of expected 
future cash flows of the asset or CGU). Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to the lesser of the revised estimate of recoverable amount and the carrying 
amount that would have been recorded had no impairment loss been previously recognized, with the 
exception of goodwill. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Income Taxes 
 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the years presented comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognized in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. 
 

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to previous 
years. 
  

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements unless such differences arise 
from goodwill or the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or loss. 
 
Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when 
the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax 
rates is recognized in income in the period that enactment occurs. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realized. 
 
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and 
associates, except, in the case of subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 
is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to 
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
 
Segmented Reporting  
 
Management monitors the results of the Company operating segments separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on reportable segment profit or loss, which is a measure of profit or loss before tax. In determining the 
Company’s geographical information, revenue information is based on the locations of the customers, and 
asset information is based on the locations of the assets.  
 
For management purposes, the Company only has one business segment being the operation of licensed 
testing lab facilities which provides analytical cannabis and hemp testing services. All of the Company’s 
operations and assets are in the United States.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Share-based compensation  
 
Share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the instruments issued and amortized 
over the vesting periods. Share-based payments to non-employees are measured at the fair value of goods 
or services received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, if it is determined the fair value of the 
goods or services cannot be reliably measured and are recorded at the date the goods or services are 
received. 
 
The Company has established a stock option plan to grant non-transferable equity settled options to purchase 
Subordinate Voting Shares and/or Multiple Voting Shares (collectively, “Shares”) to directors, officers, 
employees of and consultants to the Company. The number of common shares reserved for issuance will 
not exceed 10% of the total issued and outstanding Shares of the Company. The Company has the ability to 
grant for a maximum period of ten years from the date of grant. 
 
Stock options vest over periods ranging from immediate to two years. The fair value of each option is 
measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and recorded as a compensation 
expense in the period the options are vested, or the performance is complete. The number of awards 
expected to vest is reviewed at least annually, with any impact being recognized immediately.  

 
Any consideration paid on exercise of stock options is credited to share capital. On expiry, any amount related 
to the initial value of the stock option remains in contributed surplus. 
 
For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Company measures the goods and services 
received, and the corresponding increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of goods and services received, 
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Company cannot estimate reliably the fair value of 
the goods or services received, it measures their value by reference to the fair value of the equity instrument 
granted.  
 
Loss per Share 

 
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the period attributable to equity owners of the 
Company by the weighted average number of Subordinate Voting Shares outstanding during the period. 
 
Diluted loss per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shareholders (after 
adjusting for interest on the convertible debentures) by the weighted-average number of Subordinate Voting 
Shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted-average number of Subordinate Voting Shares that 
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential shares into Subordinate Voting Shares. The number 
of shares included with respect to options, warrants and similar instruments is computed using the treasury 
stock method, except where the effect of including such securities would be antidilutive. When there is a loss, 
inclusion of the Company’s stock options and warrants in the computation of diluted loss per share would be 
antidilutive. Because the Company has reported net loss since inception, these potential securities have 
been antidilutive and basic and diluted loss per share were the same for the periods presented.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

 
Leases 
 
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, by 
determining whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assess whether: 
 

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset; 
• the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

identified asset throughout the period of use; and 
• the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

 
A right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognized on the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently 
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. In 
addition, the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of 
the lease liabilities, if any. 

 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the implicit interest rate in the lease. If the 
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used. The lease liability is 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The lease liability is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if 
there is a change in management’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, if management changes the assessment of whether the Company will exercise a purchase, 
extension, or termination option, or if the underlying lease contract is amended. 
 
The Company elected not to separate fixed non-lease components from lease components and instead 
account for each lease component and associated fixed non-lease components as a single lease component. 
 
The Company elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have 
a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognize the lease payments associated with these leases 
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
Assets held for sale 
 
Assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts are expected to be recovered 
through a disposition rather than through continuing use. The criteria for held for sale classification is 
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely 
that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management 
must be committed to the plan to sell the asset or disposal group and the sale is expected to be completed 
within one year from the date of the classification. The assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower 
of their carrying amount and estimated fair value less costs of disposal. Impairment losses on initial 
classification as well as subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement are recognized as impairment losses 
or recoveries. When the assets or disposal groups are sold, the gains or losses on the sale are recognized 
in loss (gain) on sale of assets. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 
 
The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, and revenue and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Significant judgments, 
estimates, and assumptions that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements are described below. 

 
(i) Estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets 

 
Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of intangible asset are dependent upon estimates 
of useful lives which are determined through the exercise of judgment. The assessment of any impairment 
of these assets is dependent upon estimates of recoverable amounts that take into account factors such as 
economic and market conditions and the useful lives of assets. 

 
(ii) Impairment of property and equipment and right-of-use assets 

The Company tests whether property and equipment and right-of-use assets have suffered impairment in 
accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets. Management is required to use judgment in reviewing 
impairment indicators. The Company has concluded that it has only one cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and 
tests for impairment on that basis. In determining the recoverable amount of a CGU, various estimates are 
employed. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCS”) 
or value in use (“VIU”). FVLCS is estimated with reference to observable market transactions or measured 
using discounted cash flow projections. The VIU is calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. The 
discount rate requires the use of management judgment, particularly with respect to entity specific risk 
premiums. Judgment is also required in determining the effective terminal rate, which is based on 
management’s assessment of the longer-term outlook of the Company. 
 
(iii) Fair value of derivative liabilities  
 

Management uses the multinomial lattice model to calculate the fair value of derivative liabilities. Use of this 
method requires management to make assumptions and estimates about the Company’s unit price, the risk-
free rate, the probability of an event of default for the instruments, alternative financing, and capital raising 
events to take place, and the expected volatility of the Company’s unit or share price. In making these 
assumptions and estimates, management relies on historical market data.  

 
(iv) Fair value of share-based payments and warrants  
 
Management uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calculate the fair value of share-based 
payments and warrants. Management considers factors that knowledgeable, willing market participants 
would consider when selecting the appropriate valuation model to apply. Use of this method requires 
management to make assumptions and estimates about the share price on the measurement date, expected 
useful life of the instruments, expected dividends, the risk-free rate (based on government bonds), the 
expected volatility of the Company’s share price (based on weighted average historical volatility of 
comparable companies adjusted for changes expected due to publicly available information) and the 
probabilities of certain events occurring. In making these assumptions and estimates, management relies on 
historical market data. The inputs to the model are subject to estimate and changes in these inputs can 
materially impact the estimated fair value of these instruments. The fair value reported may not represent the 
transaction value if these options or warrants were exercised/exchanged at any point in time. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)  
 
(v) Lease liabilities 
 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company has several 
lease contracts that include extension options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is 
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors 
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. The Company included the renewal period 
as part of the lease term for leases of office and laboratory because there will be a significant negative effect 
on operations if a replacement asset is not readily available.  

 
When the Company recognizes a lease, the future lease payments are discounted using the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. This significant estimate impacts the carrying amount of the lease liabilities and 
the interest expense recorded on the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss. 
 
(vi) Assets held for sale 

 
The Company classifies assets and liabilities as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, Non-current assets 
held for sale and discontinued operations. Management is required to use judgement in assessing whether 
certain criteria under IFRS 5 are met, including whether a sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal 
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The assets or disposal groups are measured at 
the lower of their carrying amount and estimated fair value less costs of disposal, which Management 
determines based on market factors. 
 
(vii) Expected credit losses 
 

In calculating the expected credit loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost, management is required 
to make a number of judgments including the probability of possible outcomes with regards to credit losses, 
the discount rate to use for time value of money and whether the financial instrument’s credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. 
 
(viii) Going concern risk assessment 
 

The assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, meet its liabilities for the ensuing 
year, involves significant judgment based on expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. 
 
(ix) Deferred tax assets 

 
The determination of income tax is inherently complex and requires making certain estimates and 
assumptions about future events. Changes in facts and circumstances as a result of income tax audits, 
reassessments, jurisprudence and any new legislation may result in an increase or decrease in the provision 
for income taxes. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)  
 
Standards, Amendments, and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Adopted   

 

The IASB has issued several new standards and amendments that will be effective on various dates. The 
listing below is of standards, interpretation and amendments issued which the Company reasonably expects 
to be applicable at a future date. The Company intends to adopt those standards when they become effective. 
The impact on the Company is currently being assessed.  
 

IAS 1, Current and Non-Current – In January 2020 and October 2022, IASB issued Classification of Liabilities 
as “Current” or “Non-current”, which amends IAS 1. The narrow scope amendments affect only the 
presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of its recognition. 
The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights 

that are in existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all affected paragraphs to 
refer to the right to defer settlement by at least 12 months. That classification is unaffected by the likelihood 
that an entity will exercise its deferral right. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2024 and are to be applied retrospectively. The implementation of this 
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company. 

 
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and 
IFRS Practice Statements 2, Making Materiality Judgements, to help entities provide accounting policy 
disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement to disclose "significant" accounting policies 
with a requirement to disclose "material" accounting policies. The amendments are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with earlier application permitted. The implementation of this 
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company. 
 
IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – This amendment introduces the 

definition of an accounting estimate and sets criteria to help entities distinguish changes in accounting 
estimates from changes in accounting policies. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2023 and changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur 
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The implementation of this amendment is 
not expected to have a significant impact on the Company. 

 
4. SALE OF SUBSIDIARY AND LEASE ASSUMPTION 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company completed the sale of its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Green Scientific Labs NJ, LLC (“GSL NJ”) to an arm’s length party. The purchaser also assumed the 
Company’s office lease under Green Scientific Labs IL, LLC. In connection with the disposition, the Company 

received cash consideration of $462,668. The Company recognized a loss on disposal as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

 December 31, 

2022 

$

Net liabilities disposed (364,444)             

Impairment of intercompany balances with New Jersey 1,276,813           

Proceeds from sale (462,668)             

Reclassify as discontinued operations (151,260)             

Loss on sale of assets 298,441              
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5. TRADE RECEIVABLES  
 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 days term. Below is the movement in 
the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:  
   

 
 
6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 

As at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, property and equipment consists of: 

 

 

Sale of subsidiary 

In connection with the sale of Green Scientific Labs NJ, LLC (Note 4); the Company disposed of property and 
equipment from GSL NJ with a carrying value of $1,173,544. 

 

Impairment 

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized a full impairment of $669,207 on any 
remaining property and equipment in Michigan and Illinois, following the termination of operations in those 
states (Note 20). As at December 31, 2022, there were indicators of impairment that led the Company to carry 
out a review of the recoverable amount of its property and equipment in Florida. The recoverable amount was 
measured at fair value less costs of disposal. The review led to the recognition of a further non-cash 
impairment charge of $1,398,436. 

 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ $

Opening balance, January 1 45,473                      31,366                      

Provision for expected credit losses 4,335                        14,107                      

Reclassify as held for sale (35,738)                     -                            

Ending balance 14,070                      45,473                      

Leasehold 

improvements

Furniture and 

equipment

Computer 

software

Vehicles Total 

$ $ $ $ $

Cost

Balance, January 1, 2021 203,458                1,477,491             -                        -                        1,680,949             

Additions 987,159                1,849,203             224,725                24,055                  3,085,142             

Transfer from ROU assets (note 7) -                        -                        -                        55,270                  55,270                  

Balance, December 31, 2021 1,190,617             3,326,694             224,725                79,325                  4,821,361             

Additions 642,325                581,600                155,348                -                        1,379,273             

Disposals (493,687)               (1,326,920)            -                        -                        (1,820,607)            

Impairment (968,489)               (2,085,493)            (380,073)               (79,325)                 (3,513,380)            

Reclassify as assets held for sale (370,766)               (495,881)               -                        -                        (866,647)               

Balance, December 31, 2022 -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Accumulated depreciation

Balance, January 1, 2021 22,210                  393,725                -                        -                        415,935                

Depreciation 122,367                309,858                9,667                    5,776                    447,668                

Balance, December 31, 2021 144,577                703,583                9,667                    5,776                    863,603                

Depreciation 335,352                557,077                43,687                  17,816                  953,932                

Disposals (120,362)               (31,015)                 -                        -                        (151,377)               

Impairment (200,199)               (1,168,592)            (53,354)                 (23,592)                 (1,445,737)            

Reclassify as assets held for sale (159,368)               (61,053)                 (220,421)               

Balance, December 31, 2022 -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net book value 

At December 31, 2021 1,046,040             2,623,111             215,058                73,549                  3,957,758             

At December 31, 2022 -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
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7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 

 

Right-of-use assets 

 

The Company’s leases assets include office space, equipment and vehicle leases. Leases of office space and 
equipment generally have lease term between 3 to 15 years, while motor vehicles generally have lease terms 
of 6 years. There are several lease contracts that include extension options and management exercises 
significant judgement in determining whether these extension options are reasonably certain to be exercised 
(note 3). The right-of-use assets consist of the following: 

    

 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2021 

a) There was a modification to one of the existing office leases to extend the lease term for an additional 
thirty months upon the original expiration date, resulting in the remeasurement of the carrying amounts of 
the related right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at the effective date of the lease amendment. During 
the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company paid-off the outstanding balances on the vehicle leases 
with a net book value of $55,270 (Note 6). The amount was transferred from right-of-use assets to property 
and equipment upon repayment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Right of use

Buildings 

 Right of use

Equipment 

 Right of use 

Vehicles 

 Right of use 

Total 

$ $ $ $

Cost

Balance, January 1, 2021 772,538                        2,196,539                     75,082                          3,044,159                     

Lease additions 1,913,191                     2,797,545                     -                                4,710,736                     

Lease modification (65,598)                         -                                -                                (65,598)                         
Transfer to property and equipment -                                -                                (75,082)                         (75,082)                         

Balance, December 31, 2021 2,620,131                     4,994,084                     -                                7,614,215                     

Lease additions 461,073                        -                                -                                461,073                        
Lease modifications and terminations (1,425,028)                    -                                -                                (1,425,028)                    

Impairment (481,893)                       -                                -                                (481,893)                       
Free rent applied (78,263)                         -                                -                                (78,263)                         
Reclassify to held for sale (389,081)                       (2,006,247)                    -                                (2,395,328)                    

Balance, December 31, 2022 706,939                        2,987,837                     -                                3,694,776                     

Accumulated amortization

Balance, January 1, 2021 94,873                          750,869                        9,385                            855,127                        

Amortization 226,869                        529,543                        10,427                          766,839                        

Lease modification (94,873)                         -                                -                                (94,873)                         
Transfer to property and equipment -                                -                                (19,812)                         (19,812)                         
Balance, December 31, 2021 226,869                        1,280,412                     -                                1,507,281                     

Amortization 339,766                        837,287                        -                                1,177,053                     
Lease modifications and terminations (195,338)                       -                                -                                (195,338)                       
Impairment (140,861)                       -                                -                                (140,861)                       
Reclassify to held for sale (136,178)                       (468,124)                       -                                (604,302)                       

Balance, December 31, 2022 94,258                          1,649,575                     -                                1,743,833                     

Net book value 

At December 31, 2021 2,393,262                     3,713,672                     -                                6,106,934                     
At December 31, 2022 612,681                        1,338,262                     -                                1,950,943                     
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7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 

 

During the year ended December 31, 2022 

a) The Company partially vacated an office lease in Florida. As a result, it derecognized right-of-use assets 
with a carrying value of $409,101 and lease liabilities of $466,486, and a gain on lease modification of 
$57,385. 

b) During the year, the Company was evicted from its Michigan lease due to non-payment. As a result, the 
Company fully impaired the carrying value of the related right-of-use asset, with a carrying value of 
$341,032. 

c) In connection with the sale of GSL NJ and Illinois lease, the Company disposed of right-of-use assets with 
a carrying value of $820,589 and lease liabilities of $916,735, and recognized a gain on sale of assets of 
$96,146. 

d) As at December 31, 2022, the Company had reclassified any remaining right-of-use of its Arizona 
operations as held for sale, with a carrying value of $1,177,053, and corresponding lease liabilities of 
$2,245,752. 

 

Lease liabilities 

 

The Company’s corresponding lease liabilities are composed of the following: 

 

    
 

Interest expense on lease liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $224,407 (2021 - $293,761) 
from continuing operations and $285,492 from discontinued operations (2021 – $132,758). During the year 
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the incremental borrowing rate applied ranges from 9.57% to 13.19% 
The Company’s minimum contractual undiscounted cash flows for lease obligations as at December 31, 2022 
and 2021 are presented below: 

  
 

 

 

Balance, January 1, 2021 2,112,146                     

Additions 4,710,736                     

Payments (869,698)                       

Lease modification 29,275                          

Balance, December 31, 2021 5,982,459                     

Additions 461,073                        

Accretion 510,349                        

Payments (1,086,141)                    

Free rent (78,263)                         
Lease modifications and terminations (1,408,055)                    

Reclassfify to held for sale (2,245,752)                    

Balance, December 31, 2022 2,135,670                     

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

 $  $ 

 Undiscounted lease liabilities 

 Within 1 year  609,584                     1,655,244                  

 2 to 3 years 1,157,050                  3,349,898                  

Thereafter 1,552,086                  4,552,451                  

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3,318,720                  9,557,593                  

Impact of discounting (1,183,050)                 (3,575,134)                 

Present value of lease liabilities 2,135,670                  5,982,459                  

Less: current portion of lease liabilities (382,692)                    (949,721)                    

Non-current portion of lease liabilities 1,752,978                  5,032,738                  
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 

In 2020, the Company obtained a license to operate as a testing laboratory from the State of Florida 
Department of Health Office of Medical Marijuana Use (“OMMU”). Intangible assets consist of application fees 
incurred to obtain and maintain the license. The Company amortizes the license on a straight-line basis, over 
a 2-year useful life. 

 

     
 

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 

 
 
Accounts payable is non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60-day terms. Accrued liabilities 
and current portion of other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of three months to 
twelve months.  

 

10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 
 

Authorized share capital 
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Subordinate Voting Shares and an unlimited 
number of Multiple Voting Shares; both without par value.  
 
Subordinate Voting Shares 
Holders of Subordinate Voting Shares will be entitled to notice of and to attend and vote at any meeting of the 
shareholders of the Company, except a meeting of which only holders of another class or series of shares of 
the Company will have the right to vote. At each such meeting, holders of Subordinate Voting Shares will be 
entitled to one vote in respect of each Subordinate Voting Share held. 
 

License

$

Cost

Balance, January 1, 2021 62,945       

Additions -             

Balance, December 31, 2021 62,945       

Additions 78,035       

Balance, December 31, 2022 140,980     

Accumulated depreciation

Balance, January 1, 2021 26,227       

Depreciation 31,473       

Balance, December 31, 2021 57,700       

Depreciation 21,502       

Balance, December 31, 2022 79,202       

Net book value 

At December 31, 2021 5,245         
At December 31, 2022 61,778       

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ $

Accounts payable 1,151,985                               1,582,337                   

Other payables 170,660                                  197,791                      

Accrued liabilities 162,318                                  259,617                      

1,484,963                               2,039,745                   
Reclassify to held for sale (334,737)                                 -                             

Less: Non-current other payables -                                          (66,514)                       

Current portion 1,150,226                               1,973,231                   
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10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 

 
Multiple Voting Shares 
Holders of Multiple Voting Shares will be entitled to notice of and to attend and vote at any meeting of the 
shareholders of the Company, except a meeting of which only holders of another class or series of shares of 
the Company will have the right to vote. At each such meeting, holders of Multiple Voting Shares will be 
entitled to 100 votes in respect of each Multiple Voting Share held. 
 
Each Multiple Voting Share shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, into such number of 
Subordinate Voting Shares as is determined by multiplying the number of Multiple Voting Shares in respect of 
which the share conversion right is exercised by 100. The ability of a holder to convert the Multiple Voting 
Shares during the period (the “Restricted Conversion Period”) prior to September 1, 2022 was subject to a 
restriction that, unless the Company’s Board determines otherwise, the aggregate number of Subordinate 
Voting Shares and Multiple Voting Shares held of record, directly or indirectly, by residents of the United States 
(as determined by the applicable laws and regulations), may not exceed 40% of the aggregate number of 
Subordinate Voting Shares and Multiple Voting Shares and outstanding after giving effect to such conversions, 
determined in accordance with the articles of the Company. 

 
Outstanding share capital as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 
 

 
 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
a) During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company converted $481,555 of the 2019 Debentures 

and $18,445 of the 2020 Debentures via the issuance of 500,000 units. Derivative liabilities of $212,260 
related the 2019 Debentures and $2,452 related to the 2020 Debentures were reclassified to shareholders’ 
capital upon conversion. 

b) On April 6, 2021, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement, raising gross proceeds of 
$6,440,000 through the issuance of 6,440,000 units at $1.00 per unit and incurred issuance costs of 
$35,297.  

c) On May 3, 2021, the Company received gross proceeds of $1,800,000 from a non-brokered private 
placement through the issuance of 1,340,283 units at $1.343 per unit.  

d) On November 12, 2021, the Company completed the Concurrent Financing, raising gross proceeds of 
$4,529,200 through the issuance of 1,176,416 Subscription Receipts at a price of $3.85 per Subscription 
Receipt. The Subscription Receipts were automatically converted into Units, each Unit consisting of one 
GSL Unit and one Unit Warrant and immediately prior to the completion of the RTO and immediately 
thereafter, pursuant to the RTO, the GSL Units were exchange for 3,779,854 Subordinate Voting Shares 
and 7,796 Multiple Voting Shares. Each Unit Warrant was exchange for one Warrant. The Company 
recorded a warrant reserve of $1,751,085 attributable to the value of these warrants.  In consideration of 
the services rendered by the Advisors, the Company paid a cash commission equal to CAD155,000 
(equivalent to $122,869) and issued 40,000 advisor warrants (the “Advisory Warrants”) with a fair value 
of $121,381 (see Note 10 Warrants). In addition, the Company incurred issuance costs of $283,158. 

e) On November 15, 2021, the Company awarded two directors performance bonuses consisting of 
$400,000 and 260,000 units. The units are fair valued at $2.36 per unit (Note 15) for an aggregate amount 
of $613,600 and recorded as unit-based compensation expense. 
 

Number of units Number of 

Subordinate Voting 

Shares

Number of 

Multiple Voting 

Shares

Share capital 

$

Balance, January 1, 2021 10,000,000                -                             -                        1,264,298              
Conversion of convertible debentures (a) 500,000                     -                             -                        714,712                 

Issuance of units, net (b),(c),(d) 8,956,699                  -                             -                        10,455,409            

Issuance of units for services (e),(f) 1,233,072                  -                             -                        2,910,050              
Issuance of units for RTO (Note 15) 512,000                     -                             -                        1,208,320              

Distributions (g) -                             -                             -                        (30,000)                 
Shares exchange under dual share class structure (h) (21,201,771)               14,701,745                64,972                  -                        

Balance, December 31, 2021 -                             14,701,745                64,972                  16,522,789            

Conversion of Multiple Voting Shares into Subordinate Voting Shares (i) -                             669,500                     (6,695)                   -                        

Balance, December 31, 2022 -                             15,371,245                58,277                  16,522,789            
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10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 

  
f) On November 15, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 973,072 units at a fair value of $2.36 per 

unit (Note 15) to certain consultants as payment for finder’s fees and certain advisory services provided 
in connection with the RTO and certain making and strategic advisory services to be provided to the 
Company following the completion of the RTO.  

g) During the year ended December 31, 2021, distributions of $30,000 were made.  
h) In connection with closing of the RTO and as a result of the implementation of a dual share class structure 

by the Company, all outstanding units as at the time of closing were exchanged into an aggregate of 
14,701,745 Subordinate Voting Shares and 64,972 Multiple Voting Shares.  

 
Year ended December 31, 2022 

 
i) During the year, 6,695 Multiple Voting Shares of the Company were converted into 669,500 Subordinate 

Voting Shares of the Company at a ratio of 1:100.  
 
Long term incentive plan 
On November 15, 2021, and as amended on June 22, 2022, the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive 
Plan (“LTIP”) which includes the stock options, Restricted Share Unit (“RSU”) Plan and Deferred Share Unit 
(the “DSU”). The Incentive Plan is administered by the Board of Directors, which sets the terms of incentive 
awards under the Incentive Plan. The maximum number of common shares available for issuance under the 
LTIP is limited to 10% of the Company's outstanding common shares at any one time. 
 
Restricted Share Units (“RSU”) 

 
During the year December 31, 2022, under the Company’s LTIP, 175,000 RSUs were issued to directors, 
with vesting terms ranging from immediately to quarterly over 2 years beginning on the 3-month anniversary 
of the grant date. As at December 31, 2022, the Company had 175,000 RSUs outstanding, of which 131,250 
were vested. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized share-based 
compensation expense of $51,352 related to RSUs (2021 - $nil). 
 
Stock options 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is authorized to grant stock options to directors, officers, employees, 
consultants, consultant company or management company employees of the Company and its subsidiaries, 
not exceeding 10% of the issued and outstanding Subordinate Voting Shares and the Multiple Voting Shares 
calculated on an as-converted to Subordinate Voting Share basis of the Company. Stock options granted are 
exercisable over a period not exceeding 10 years from the date granted. Options shall vest in the manner 
imposed by the Board of Directors as a condition at the grant date. 
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10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 

 
Stock options (continued)  

 
The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity for the periods indicated:  

  
 
*On November 15, 2021, the Company issued replacement options pursuant to the RTO. The stock options 
are fully vested and are exercisable for Subordinate Voting Shares at an exercise price of $3.75 per share 
with an expiry date of October 31, 2023. The replacement options which were issued are not considered to 
be a modification to the original options upon completion of the RTO. The fair value of the replacement options 
was estimated to be $101,319 (Note 15).  
 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, 1,520,000 options were granted with vesting periods ranging from 
immediate to 24 months. The Company recognized share-based compensation with respect to stock options 
of $235,582. 

 
The following table presents information related to the stock options outstanding as at December 31, 2022:  
 

 
 
The fair value of the Company’s stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 
using the following assumptions:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Number of options

Weighted average 

exercise price

$

Balance, January 1, 2021 -                             -                             

Replacement options* 76,500                       3.75                           

Balance, December 31, 2021 76,500                       3.75                           

Granted 1,520,000                  0.22                           

Balance, December 31, 2022 1,596,500                  0.39                           

Grant date Exercise price 

($)

Weighted average 

remaining life (yrs)

Number of options 

outstanding

Number of options 

exercisable

October 15, 2021 3.75                 0.81                            76,500                    76,500                     

June 22, 2022 0.50                 9.48                            100,000                  -                           
August 17, 2022 0.20                 9.64                            1,420,000               617,188                   

Year ended 

December 31, 2022

Year ended 

December 31, 2021

Volatility 160.7% - 213.3% 131.46%

Risk-free interest rate 2.85% - 3.41% 0.99%

Expected life (years) 10 years 2 years

Dividend yield Nil Nil
Forfeiture rate Nil Nil

Weighted average fair value per common share $0.20 to $0.50 2.36$                         
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10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 

 
Warrants 
 
The following table summarizes the Company’s warrants activity for the periods indicated:  

  
 
The following table presents information related to warrants outstanding as at December 31, 2021:  
 

 
 
(1)  As part of the Concurrent Financing completed on November 12, 2021, the Company issued 1,176,416 
Warrants with an exercise price of $4.50 per either one Subordinate Voting Share or 1/100 of a Multiple Voting 
Shares, exercisable until November 12, 2024. The fair value of $1,751,085 of the Warrants was estimated 
using the Black-Scholes pricing model using the following assumptions: expected life – 3 years; annualized 
volatility – 125.12%; risk-free interest rate – 1.22%; dividend rate – 0%; stock price - $2.36 (note 15).   

  
(2)  As part of the Concurrent Financing completed on November 12, 2021, the Company issued 40,000 
Advisor Warrants to the financial advisors. Each Advisor Warrant entitles the holder to acquire one unit 
comprised of one Subordinate Voting Share and one Subordinate Voting Share purchase warrant, at an 
exercise price equal to $4.50, exercisable until November 12, 2024, provided that if the trading price of the 
Subordinate Voting Shares on the CSE is greater than CAD$8.50 for ten consecutive trading days, the 
Company may accelerate the time of expiry to the day that is 30 days from the date that notice of such 
acceleration is given to the holders. The fair value of $121,381 of the Warrants was estimated using the Black-
Scholes pricing model using the following assumptions: expected life – 3 years; annualized volatility – 
125.12%; risk-free interest rate – 1.22%; dividend rate – 0%; stock price - $2.36 (note 15).   
 
11. CONTINGENCIES 

 
In the normal course of business, the Company may be involved in legal proceedings, claims and assessments 
arising in the ordinary course of business. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are 
not predictable with assurance. Legal fees for such matters are expensed as incurred and the Company 
accrues for adverse outcomes as they become probable and estimable. As of December 31, 2022, there were 
no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the results 
of the Company's operations.  

 
12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

Related parties are defined as management and members of the Company and/or members of their immediate 
family and/or other companies and/or entities in which a board member or senior officer is a principal owner 
or senior executive. Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, related party 
transactions and balances are as follows:  

 

Number of Warrants Weighted average 

exercise price

$

Balance, January 1, 2021 -                             -                             

Issued 1,216,416                  4.48                           

Balance, December 31, 2021 and 2022 1,216,416                  4.48                           

Issue Date
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price ($)

Weighted Average 

Remaining Life (yrs)

Number of 

Warrants 

Outstanding

November 12, 2021 (1), (2) 4.50                           1.87                           1,216,416             
4.50                           1.87                           1,216,416             

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ $

Short-term compensation 604,090                      965,538                      

Share-based compensation 127,902                      613,600                      
731,992                      1,579,138                   
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13. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 

 

2019 Debentures 
On November 7, 2019, the Company entered into an agreement to issue a series of convertible debentures 
with an aggregate amount of $987,765 (the “2019 Debentures”). The 2019 Debentures bore interest at 13% 
per annum. The Company was required to make principal and interest payments until the 2019 Debentures 
was fully repaid. The 2019 Debentures was secured by a security interest in the Company’s property and 
assets pursuant to the security agreement entered into with the holder. The outstanding principal and unpaid 
accrued interest was at the option of the holder to be converted into the Company’s membership unit at a 
conversion price of at the lesser of: (i) $20 million pre-money valuation per membership unit or; or (ii) the per 
membership unit purchase price of the next equity financing by the Company for cash. In 2019 the Company 
closed two tranches and raised gross proceeds of $224,009. In 2020, the Company closed the remaining 
amount in four tranches and raised gross proceeds of $763,757. The monthly principal and interest payments 
for the different tranches range from $3,735 to $19,828. During the year ended December 31, 2021, $481,555 
of the 2019 Debentures was converted into 481,555 membership units of the Company at $1 per unit. Upon 
conversion, the Company recorded a loss on conversion of $168,271.  

 
2020 Debenture 

On August 11, 2020, the Company entered into a secured credit line with a principal amount of $200,000. The 
note bore interest of 13% per annum with a maturity date of November 11, 2020. The Company was to make 
interest only monthly payment of $2,250. The promissory note is secured by a security interest in equipment 
owned by the Company up to a value of $200,000. The outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest was 
at the option of the holder to be converted into the Company’s membership unit at a conversion price of at the 
lesser of: (i) $20 million pre-money valuation per membership unit or; or (ii) the per membership unit purchase 
price of the next equity financing by the Company for cash. On November 4, 2020, the Company entered into 
an amendment to the promissory note to extend the maturity date to February 11, 2021 and the monthly 
interest payment was be in the amount of $2,500. During the year ended December 31, 2021, $18,445 of the 
2018 Debenture was converted into 18,445 membership units of the Company at $1 per unit and the remaining 
portion was repaid in full.   

 

2021 Debenture 

On February 2, 2021, the Company entered into a promissory note with a principal amount of $101,500. The 
note bore interest of 13% per annum with a maturity date of August 2, 2021. The principal amount and accrued 
interest were due on maturity. The outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest was at the option of the 
holder to be converted into the Company’s membership unit at a conversion price of at the lesser of: (i) $20 
million pre-money valuation per membership unit or; or (ii) the per membership unit purchase price of the next 
equity financing by the Company for cash. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the outstanding 
principal and accrued interest were repaid in full. Upon early repayment, the Company recorded a loss of 
$29,169 on settlement.  
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13. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (continued) 

   

 
 

14. DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES  

 

2019 Debentures 

 

The 2019 Debenture (see Note 13) issued by the Company contained down round protection on the 
conversion feature. If the down round protection is enacted, there will be variability in the number of 
membership units issued. In accordance with IFRS, a contract to issue variable number of membership units 
shall be classified as a derivative liability and measured at fair value with change in fair value recognized in 
the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss at each period-end. The derivative liability is 
ultimately converted into the Company’s equity when the convertible debenture is converted, or will be 
extinguished on the repayment of the debentures and reclassified to contributed surplus.  

 

The Company used the multinomial lattice model to estimate the fair value of the derivative liabilities with 
respect to the 2019 Debentures at each reporting date. This is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement 
(Note 19). The following assumptions were used: 

 

  
 

Upon initial recognition, the Company recorded derivative liabilities of $142,598 in 2019 and $460,508 in 2020. 
During the year ended December 31, 2020, a balance of $ $255,538 was transferred to contributed surplus 
upon partial payment made by the Company throughout the year. During the year ended December 31, 2021, 
the Company recorded a gain of $52,612 on the revaluation of the derivative liabilities (2020 – a gain of 
$35,439). During the year ended December 31, 2021, $481,555 of the 2019 Debentures were converted and 
the Company recorded $212,260, representing the fair value of the derivative liability at the conversion date, 
as members’ capital.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2018 

Debenture 

$

 2019 

Debentures 

$

 2020 

Debenture 

$

 2021 

Debenture 

$

Total

$

Balance, January 1, 2021 -                                 315,333             200,000             -                        515,333            
Amounts issued -                                 -                        -                        101,500             101,500            
Less: allocated to derivative liabilities (Note 14) -                                 -                        -                        (37,615)             (37,615)             
Less: issuance costs -                                 -                        -                        (944)                  (944)                  
Accretion -                                 84,323               -                        9,390                 93,713              

Repayment -                                 (86,372)             (181,555)              (101,500)           (369,427)           
Conversion -                                 (481,555)           (18,445)             -                        (500,000)           

Loss on conversion -                                 168,271             -                        29,169               197,440            

Balance, December 31, 2021 and 2022 -                                 -                        -                        -                        -                        

2019 Debentures March 15, 2021* December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 At inception 

Volatility 101.00% to 119.90% 114.20% to 123.70% 97.30% to 98.20% 95.00% to 108.00%

Risk-free interest rate 0.06% 0.09% to 0.10% 1.59% 0.17% to 1.68%

Term remaining (years) 0.65 to 0.97 0.85 to 1.17 1.85 to 1.96 1.95 to 2.00

Stock price 1.00$                          0.94$                          0.72$                         $0.68 to $0.75

*Date of conversion
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14. DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES (continued) 

 

2020 Debenture 

 

Similar to the 2019 Debentures, the 2020 Debenture contained down round protection on the conversion 
feature and shall be classified as derivatives liabilities and measure at fair value with change in fair value 
recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss at each period end.  

 

The Company used the multinomial lattice model to estimate the fair value of the derivative liabilities with 
respect to the 2020 Debenture at each reporting date. This is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement (Note 
19). The following assumptions were used: 

 

 
 

Upon initial recognition, the Company recorded derivative liabilities of $92,939 in 2020. During the year ended 
December 31, 2021, the Company recorded a loss of $26,586 on the revaluation of the derivative liabilities 
(2020 – a gain of $92,939). During the year ended December 31, 2021, $18,455 of the 2020 Debenture were 
converted and the Company recorded $2,452, representing the fair value of the derivative liability at the 
conversion date, as members’ capital.  

 

2021 Debenture 

 

Similar to the other debentures, the 2021 Debenture contained down round protection on the conversion 
feature and was classified as derivatives liabilities and measured at fair value with change in fair value 
recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss at each period end.  

 
The Company used the multinomial lattice model to estimate the fair value of the derivative liabilities with 
respect to the 2021 Debenture at each reporting date. This is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement (Note 
19). The following assumptions were used: 

 

 
 

Upon initial recognition, the Company recorded derivative liabilities of $37,615 in February 2021. During the 
year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recorded a gain of $7,286 on the revaluation of the derivative 
liabilities (2020 – Nil). During the year ended December 31, 2021, the 2021 Debenture was fully repaid and 
the Company transferred $30,329, representing the fair value of the derivative liability to contributed surplus.  

  
 

2020 Debenture March 15, 2021* December 31, 2020 At inception 

Volatility 93.02% 84.24% 149.84%

Risk-free interest rate 0.01% 0.08% 0.12%

Term remaining (years) 0.25 0.11 0.50

Stock price 1.00$                          0.94$                          0.86$                         

*Date of conversion/repayment

2021 Debenture March 15, 2021* At inception 

Volatility 94.07% 96.00%

Risk-free interest rate 0.03% 0.07%

Term remaining (years) 0.34 0.50

Stock price 1.00$                          0.96$                          

*Date of repayment
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14. DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES (continued) 

 

 
 

15. REVERSE TAKOVER (RTO) TRANSACTION 

 

On November 15, 2021, the Company completed the RTO transaction of GSL LLC. In connection with the 
closing of the RTO, the Company’s name changed to Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. and also 
implemented a dual share class structure consisting of Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B multiple voting 
shares (“Multiple Voting Shares”). At closing of the RTO, there were 14,701,745 Subordinate Voting Shares 
and 64,972 Multiple Voting Shares issued and outstanding.  

 

The Transaction was accounted for as a reverse takeover transaction that was not a business combination. 
Instead, the Transaction has been accounted under IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment. In the accounting for the 
reverse takeover, the RTO Transaction consideration was determined by reference to the fair value of equity 
the legal subsidiary, being GSL LLC, would have issued to the legal parent entity, being Green Scientific Labs 
Holdings Inc., for the shareholders of Green Scientific Labs Holdings Inc. to obtain the same percentage 
ownership interest of approximately 2.45% in the combined entity. The fair value of the issued equity was 
determined based on the most reliable and observable fair value measures being the price per unit of a 
concurrent financing (note 9 (g)) for Subscription Receipts consisting of common shares and warrants. The 
Company applied Black-Scholes pricing model to determine the split between the fair value of the common 
shares and the warrants using an iterative approach such that the value of the warrant plus the share are 
equal to the offering price of the unit. The share price was determined to be 61% of the $3.85 unit offering 
after using the following assumptions: expected life – 3 years; annualized volatility – 125.12%; risk-free interest 
rate – 1.22%; dividend rate – 0%; exercise price - $4.50; and share price of $2.36.  

 

GSL LLC has been treated as the accounting acquirer and the Company has been treated as the accounting 
acquiree in these consolidated financial statements, with the equity consideration and identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed being measured at fair value using the acquisition method of accounting.   

 

The following table summarizes the consideration paid and the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, 
and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition: 

 

    
 

In connection with the RTO, the Company incurred other listing costs of $2,853,966 which included finders’ 
fee, advisory fees, legal and regulatory expenses.  

 
 
 

 2018 

Debenture 

$

 2019 

Debentures 

$

 2020 

Debenture 

$

 2021 

Debenture 

$

Total

$

Balance, January 1, 2021 -                                 312,129             -                        -                        312,129            
Allocated from derivative liabilities (Note 13) -                                 -                        -                        37,615               37,615              
Transferred to contributed surplus upon repayment -                                 (47,257)             (24,134)             (30,329)             (101,720)           

Transferred to member's capital upon conversion -                                 (212,260)           (2,452)               -                        (214,712)           

Change in fair value -                                 (52,612)             26,586               (7,286)               (33,312)             

Balance, December 31, 2021 and 2022 -                                 -                        -                        -                        -                        

Common shares (512,000 common shares at $2.36 per share)  $   1,208,320 

Replacement options (note 10)          101,319 
Total consideration       1,309,639 

Identifable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash          214,761 
Other receivables            11,830 

Accounts payable and other payables         (207,824)

Listing expense       1,290,872 
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16. LOSS PER SHARE 

 

The following table shows the components used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for loss 
attributable to common shareholders.  

  
 

The Company’s potentially dilutive securities which include stock options and warrants have been excluded 
from the computation of diluted loss per share as the effect would be to reduce the loss per share. Therefore, 
the weighted-average number of common share outstanding used to calculate both basic and diluted net loss 
per share attributable to common shareholders is the same. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the 
Company excluded 1,596,500 (2021 – 76,500) and 1,216,416 (2021 – 1,216,416) common shares issuable, 
respectively, upon exercise of the Company’s stock options and warrants as the effect was anti-dilutive.  

 
17. INCOME TAXES 

 

The reconciliation of the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial statutory income tax rate of 26.5% (2021 
– 26.5%) to the effective tax rate is as follows:  

 
 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the carrying value 
of the consolidated financial position and their corresponding tax values.  Deferred tax assets have not been 
recognized in respect of the following net deductible temporary differences:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding - basic (#) 14,854,749                   11,381,454                      

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding - diluted (#) 14,854,749                   11,381,454                      

Net loss attributable to common shares ($) - continuing operations (6,885,604)                    (7,222,446)                       

Basic loss per share - continuing operations (0.46)                             (0.63)                               

Diluted loss per share - continuing operations (0.46)                             (0.63)                               

Net loss attributable to common shares ($) - discontinued operations (2,950,650)                    (1,301,596)                       

Basic loss per share - discontinued operations (0.20)                             (0.11)                               

Diluted loss per share - discontinued operations (0.20)                             (0.11)                               

Basic loss per share (0.66)                             (0.75)                               

Diluted loss per share (0.66)                             (0.75)                               

For the year ended 

December 31, 2022

For the year ended 

December 31, 2021

$ $

Loss from continuing operations before recovery of income taxes (6,885,604)                (7,222,446)                    

Loss from discontinued operations before recovery of income taxes (2,950,650)                (1,301,596)                    

Net loss before recovery of income taxes (9,836,254)                (8,524,042)                    

Expected income tax recovery (2,606,607)                (2,258,870)                    

Difference in foreign tax rate and other adjustments 1,274,051                 293,539                        

60,256                      128,856                        

96,715                      342,081                        

Change in tax benefits not recognized 1,175,585                 1,494,394                     

Income tax expense/ (recovery) —                              —                                 

Share based compensation

Other non-deductible expenses
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

  
 

Share issue costs incurred in 2021 will be fully amortized in 2025. The remaining deductible temporary 
differences may be carried forward indefinitely.  Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of 
these items because it is not possible that future taxable profit will be available against which the group can 
utilize the benefits therefrom.  

 
18. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure sufficient liquidity to support its financial 
obligations and to execute its operating and strategic plans, managing healthy liquidity reserves and access 
to capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it based on the funds 
available to the Company in order to support business development. The directors do not establish quantitative 
return on capital criteria for management, but rather rely on the expertise of the Company’s management to 
sustain future development of the business. In order to carry out the planned business development and pay 
for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and seek to raise additional 
amounts, as needed. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements apart from the 
need to maintain its listing in accordance with stock exchange requirements. The Company raises capital, as 
necessary, to meet its needs and take advantage of perceived opportunities and, therefore, does not have a 
numeric target for its capital structure. Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing 
basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. The Company 
plans to use existing funds, as well as funds from the future sale of services, to fund operations and expansion 
activities. However, the Company may attempt to issue new shares or issue new debt for acquisitions. There 
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue raising capital in this manner. 

 
19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
Financial Instruments 

 

Classification of financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis at fair value or amortized cost. The 
classification of the financial instruments, as well as their gross carrying values, are shown in the table below:  

 

          
 

Financial instruments recorded at fair value are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs to fair value measurements. The three levels of hierarchy are: 

2022 2021

$ $

Non-capital losses carried forward - Canada 18,767                      —                                 

Non-capital losses carried forward - US 11,620,276               6,045,935                     

Total 11,639,043               6,045,935                     

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ $

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash 333,567                         5,184,166                

Trade receivables 84,433                           720,569                   

Other receivables -                                264,725                   

Total financial assets 418,000                         6,169,460                

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Accounts payable and other payables 1,150,226                      2,039,745                

Lease liabilities 2,135,670                      5,982,459                

Total financial liabilities 3,285,896                      8,022,204                
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

 

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and 

Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 
 

There have been no transfers between fair value levels during the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. 
 

Cash, trade receivables, other receivable, accounts payable and all other payables are all short-term in nature 
and, as such, their carrying values approximate fair value.  

 

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no financial assets or liabilities measured and recognized in 
the consolidated statements of financial position at fair value that would be categorized as Level 3 in the fair 
value hierarchy above. 

 
Financial Risk Management 
 
The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks. Management 
mitigate these risks by assessing, monitoring and approving the Company’s risk management processes: 
 
a. Credit Risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of a potential loss to the Company if one party of a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations. The maximum credit exposures at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are the carrying 
amount of cash and trade receivables. To reduce credit risk, all significant cash balances are placed with 
major, reputable, U.S. financial institutions. The Company has concentration of credit risk as the top three 
trade debtors accounted for approximately 35% and 84% of its total trade receivables balance as at 
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. Three of the Company’s customers accounted 
for 40% of total revenue (2021 – 65%). In view of this, management regularly assesses by monitoring the 
individual profile of its trade receivables. In this regard, management considers that the credit concentration 
risk has been significantly mitigated. The following table provides information regarding the aged trading 
receivables: 
 
 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91+ days 
December 31, 2022  77% 5% 2% 17% 
December 31, 2021  79% 15% 1% 5% 

 
b. Liquidity Risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Company manages liquidity risk through the effective management of its capital 
structure. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity at all 
times to settle obligations and liabilities when due. The Company has the following undiscounted contractual 
obligations:  
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19.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

    

 
c. Interest rate risk  

 
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Currently, the Company has no assets or liabilities with a 
variable interest rate. Financial assets and financial liabilities that bear interest at fixed rates are subject to 
fair value interest rate risk. The Company’s lease obligations bear fixed interest rates. As at December 31, 
2022, the Company did not have any outstanding loans and borrowings.    
 
20. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE  

 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company disposed of its interest in GSL NJ subsidiary and 
decided to cease its operations in Michigan, Connecticut, and Illinois. It is also currently actively seeking a 
sale of its Arizona operations. The related assets and liabilities have been presented as held for sale and 
are as follows: 
 

  
 
Analysis of the result of discontinued operations is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Less than 1 

year

2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years Greater 

than 5 

years

Total 

$ $ $ $ $

Accounts payable and other payables 1,150,226   -              -              -              1,150,226   

Lease liabilities 609,584      1,157,050   1,552,086   -              3,318,720   

December 31, 2022 1,759,810   1,157,050   1,552,086   -              4,468,946   

Accounts payable and other payables 1,973,231   35,873        30,641        -              2,039,745   

Lease liabilities 1,655,244   3,349,898   4,552,451   -              9,557,593   

December 31, 2021 3,628,475   3,385,771   4,583,092   -              11,597,338 

 December 31, 

2022 

$

Cash 161,938              
Trade receivables 113,022              

Prepayments and deposits 16,749                

Inventories 226,014              

Property and equipment 646,202              

Right-of-use assets 1,791,025           

Accounts payable and other payables (334,737)             
Lease liabilities (2,245,752)          

Net assets held for sale 374,461              
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20. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 

 

  
 
In assessing the fair values of the assets and liabilities, the Company determined that all assets and liabilities 
had a fair value which is equal to net book value.  

 
 
21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 
Subsequent to the year, the Company made an investment of $50,000 in Trevor Motorcycles, a provider of 
electric motorcycles, in the form of a convertible bond, with maturity date on 16 February 2024 and bearing 
an interest rate of 8% compounded annually. 

 
On January 30, 2023, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent to sell all of the outstanding 
equity interests of Green Scientific Labs AZ, LLC to a third party. Pursuant to the arrangement, the purchaser 
shall pay the Company $200,000 in cash, less any amounts owed by the Company regarding any 
enforcement actions taken against the Company by the State of Arizona. Further, the purchaser will fund the 
operations of Arizona upon executing a line of credit agreement (“LOCA”) until closing of the transaction. 
Cash advances to the Company shall be accrued as debt owing to the purchaser (“LOCA Note”). Should the 
purchaser terminate the acquisition or upon the closing of the acquisition, the LOCA Note would be forgiven. 
On March 30, 2023, the Company executed a definitive agreement with respect to this transaction. 
 
Subsequent to the year, 384 Multiple Voting Shares were converted into 38,400 Subordinate Voting Shares. 

 

 December 31, 

2022 

 December 31, 

2021 

$ $

Revenue 1,811,555           -                      
Materials and consumables used (414,193)             (2,236)                 

Reversal of (provision for) expected credit losses (35,738)               (1,016)                 

General and administration (363,435)             (96,700)               

Supplies and small equipment (64,974)               (188,475)             

Rent and occupancy cost (240,317)             (104,822)             

Finance cost (400,446)             (132,780)             

Advertising and promotion (408)                    (600)                    
Travel and entertainment (68,521)               (136,242)             

Employee wages and benefits (942,194)             (325,472)             

Consulting and professional fees (9,045)                 (43,795)               

Depreciation and amortization (1,066,211)          (297,010)             

Other income -                      27,552                

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 697                     -                      

Gain on loan forgiveness 5,067                  -                      
Gain on lease modification 11,511                -                      

Impairment loss (1,022,738)          -                      

Net and comprehensive loss from discontinued operations (2,950,650)          (1,301,596)          


